
Agenda Report 

Date: June 9. 2008 

TO: CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH IMCORP TO 
TEST AND EVALUATE UNDERGROUND 34KV TRANSMISSION 
ELECTRICAL CABLE SYSTEMS FOR THE WATER AND POWER 
DEPARTMENT. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Approve the establishment of a contract with IMCORP to obtain test and evaluation 
services for an amount not to exceed $350,000; and 

2. Acknowledge that the proposed contract is exempt from competitive bidding 
pursuant to the City Charter Section 1002(F), contracts for professional or unique 
services; 

BACKGROUND 

Pasadena Water and Power Department (Department) recognizes the growing need to 
address the reliability of its aging underground cable system. The Department 
experienced several failures of its 34kV sub-transmission lines in the past few months. 
These lines form the back bone of the electrical system and connect the various 
receiving stations from one end of the city to the other. The increase in failure rate 
indicates that the cable system is rapidly reaching the end of its useful life. 

The replacement cost of this particular system would range from $5 to $12 Million per 
line and will total approximately $40 Million. Due to limited funding, and complexity of 
the replacement, segmentation and prioritization are necessary. This prioritization will 
provide significant financial and/or reliability benefits. 
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The Department proposes to contract with IMCORP to develop the prioritization. 
IMCORP will test and evaluate each cable; test results will enable the Department to 
identify the least reliable cables, to prioritize their replacement, determine how long 
subsequent replacement can be deferred, and spread the capital cost over time. The 
work under this contract is a key step toward a comprehensive cable reliability program. 

Based on a survey of potential vendors, IMCORP's ability to provide these services is 
unique in that they are the only provider that can complete the mix of non-destructive 
field testing and engineering evaluation that will reliably identify specific problem 
locations, or potential failures, as well as the predictive assessment of future 
performance of the cable system, using a proprietary software for their analysis and 
evaluation. IMCORP is uniquely capable of performing all the tests necessary in a 
timely manner, and has committed to performing the majority of the testing by July 15, 
2008, prior to the summer load, if a contract is awarded by June 9, 2008. The timely 
testing of the cables will allow the Department to develop a replacement strategy by 
September lSt, 2008, identify the replacement priorities, order the right quantity of the 
type of cables needed, budget the expenditures, secure the resources and perform the 
work in the following months. 

A typical replacement project will occur during the fall, winter and spring months. 
Testing and analyzing the cables prior to the summer heat waves, will provide the 
Department a window into the ability of each cable to sustain the summer load and 
create contingency plans to deal with the summer loads without jeopardizing the 
reliability of the electrical system or increasing the Department's cost in additional local 
generation to support this objective. IMCORP has provided this service for other 
utilities, including Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, and Colorado Springs 
Utility, as well as other utilities here in California. 

The Department recommends a contract award to IMCORP for the work described in a 
proposal dated May 28, 2008 for an amount not to exceed $350,000. The contract 
amounts include the base contract amount, an amount for some additional testing 
identified since their proposal was submitted, plus a 10% contingency. 

It is in the City's best interests to contract with IMCORP to test the 34kV cables before 
finalizing a replacement plan. It is also a prudent and proactive approach that will 
enable the city to anticipate the next failures before they occur. The Department 
recommends Council approve a contract not to exceed $350,000 to IMCORP to allow 
this critical and vital work to be completed in a timely manner. 
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FISCAL IMPACT 

Sufficient funding is available in capital fund 41 1, CIP 3137, Cable Replacement and 
Testing. 

Resp ctfully submitted, A 

BERNARD K. MELEKIAN 
City Manager 

Prepared by: h 

Joe Awad 
Business Unit Director 
Water and Power Department 

Approved by: 

~ h ~ l l i s k .  Currie 
~ e n e r a l  Manager 
Water and Power Department 




